
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, September 12, 2012 

Wolcott Town Hall, Council Chambers 

7:00 P.M. 

Page 1 of 9    

MINUTES 

__________________________________________________________________ 

  

Note: These are summary minutes.  A tape recording of this meeting 

and full application are on file in the Wolcott Town Hall, Commission 

Secretary's Office.   

 

Chairman Grant called the Public Hearing to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Steven J. Grant, Frances Mae Flynn,  

Brett Muccino, Kenneth Barnes and Paul Mazurek 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT:   None 

 

ALTERNATES PRESENT: Theodore Storlazzi, Anthony Lombardi and 

James Treanor 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

 

• APPEAL #1960 Appellant/Owner: Dennis Cleary & Eileen Cleary: 

108 Mad River Road, Wolcott, CT Property Location: same: MAP 

107/LOT 2. Requesting a variance to construct a wind energy 

system with 120’ Monopole, 143’ total unit height with 80’ 

setbacks.  He is requesting the following variances: 
 

1) 20’ in height 

2) 63’ right side property line  

3) 63’ rear property line   

4) 4’ left property line   
 

Application was denied per Wolcott Zoning Regulations Section 24.13, 

stating that it does not meet the height and setback requirements.   
 

Chairman Grant asked the applicant if he could come forward and 

sign in. 

 

Mr. Dennis Cleary reside at 108 Mad River Road, Wolcott.  He noted 

that he is here to apply to Zoning Board of Appeals for a variance 

as it is stated in the application (on file). The variance is to install a 

120’ monopole which currently the regulations only allow 100’ 

monopole in residential district and also setbacks for that wind 

turbine which currently at 120’, plus a 23’ blade would require a 



Zoning Board of Appeals 
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, September 12, 2012 

Wolcott Town Hall, Council Chambers 

7:00 P.M. 

Page 2 of 9    

MINUTES 

__________________________________________________________________ 

  

143’ setback and he indicated that he has 80’ setback, so he is 

applying for 63’ setback from both the left and the right property 

lines.  He noted that the hardship is due to the unique topography 

and contour of the land in the Town of Wolcott. The height and 

placement of the tower is necessary due to existing vegetation and 

topography. He noted that he believes all of the abutting property 

owners have been notified.  He also noted that he has the receipt 

only for one of the neighbors that he sent the letter to.  

 

Chairman Grant pointed out that he sees Mr. Cleary has some 

green cards with him tonight, at which time Mr. Cleary said he does 

and he handed them in (on file).  

 

Chairman Grant inquired if the standard letter was sent at which 

time Mr. Cleary said he has that. 

 

Mr. Cleary stated that the current zoning regulations, Section 24-

13.1, maximum tower height allows currently, which he has a 

current building permit to build a wind turbine not to exceed 100 

feet in a residential district and the current permit that he has is an 

80 foot tower with a 23’ blade and the current location has been 

approved by both Zoning and the Building Inspector, which is for a 

103’ side yard variance that can be built tomorrow. He noted that 

after receiving his permit from zoning and placing a deposit to 

purchase the tower the engineer from the tower company came to 

the site and said this is really close but it really doesn’t provide 

enough wind to make this work. Therefore, he is before the 

commission asking for an additional 20’ in height above the current 

regulation as it is stated in the permit and the additional setbacks 

on either side.  He stated that he thinks that this regulation is 

probably over 30 years old; the setbacks were setup so that it could 

not fall on anyone’s house.   He stated that he is about 800 or 1000 

feet from anyone’s house, so that is not an issue. He also noted that 

he is within 80 feet of a property line on both sides, of Mrs. Olsen’s 

on the right and Beach Builders on the left.  The hardship is similar 

and consistent with the hardships under Appeal #1940, 41 & 42, 

which was allowed right outside of the back door of the Town Hall.   

It allowed for a 120’ tower in a residential district. He also noted that 



Zoning Board of Appeals 
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, September 12, 2012 

Wolcott Town Hall, Council Chambers 

7:00 P.M. 

Page 3 of 9    

MINUTES 

__________________________________________________________________ 

  

Company One on Central Ave received a 120’ tower in a 

residential district, because of the topography.  He also mentioned 

that his hardship is stated in the application and the topography 

and the vegetation in the area that is basically blocking the wind 

that will allow him to do it on the original site.  He would like to move 

the current permitted site 60’ to the rear of the property which is 

east and to put the similar tower which is a monopole tower and to 

place that 120 feet as opposed to a maximum of 100’ in residential 

district. Instead of the 80’ in the current permitted location. He 

noted that it will go back a little further anyway from everybody but 

closer because of the lot lines. He indicated that he has met in the 

past with Mr. Olsen on the right and he said he has no objection 

too. Mr. Cleary also stated that he is looking for two separate 

variances. One is the 20 foot residential district on the tower height.   

He indicated if the Board does not approve the variance for the 

height then he will still be asking for the side yards variance, 

because that will allow him to take the current 80’tower and make 

it a 100’ tower. There are two pieces that are somewhat related but 

he is asking for them separately. So if there is any reason one was 

not approved and the other was approved it still would be helpful 

although not quite making the project properly go forward.      

     

Mr. Cleary also stated that when he applied to Planning and Zoning 

about 6 months ago he was hoping to do it without a variance. 

     

Ms. Flynn said when you were explaining when the engineer visited 

the site. She referenced the place where it was approved doesn’t 

work could you elaborate on what doesn’t work. 

 

Mr. Cleary said it is because of the topography behind the location 

and all of the ledge of the rear of his property and that was going 

to restrict the wind flow that would have hit the wind turbine at the 

height. It would have gotten not enough wind to turn often enough 

to make power.  

 

Ms. Flynn said to make any power or not enough power, at which 

time Mr. Cleary stated not enough power to make it feasible. He 



Zoning Board of Appeals 
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, September 12, 2012 

Wolcott Town Hall, Council Chambers 

7:00 P.M. 

Page 4 of 9    

MINUTES 

__________________________________________________________________ 

  

also said that if he is granted the variance and he places that tower 

there it will do about 30% of his house. 

 

Ms. Flynn asked what it would be if he was not granted the 

variance, at which time Mr. Cleary said it will drop to 15% and it 

probably won’t be feasible. 

 

He stated that the other issue is the vegetation in the area.  Mr. 

Cleary noted that he would have to cut a lot more trees to allow 

the wind to get that power and possibly be feasible. 

 

Chairman Grant inquired if it is possible to increase the size of the 

pole at the current location from 80 to 100, at which time Mr. Cleary 

said that would require a side yard variance.  

 

Mr. Cleary pointed out that this tower is the quietest and needs less 

maintenance. Also there are photos that the commission members 

have in their packets (on file).   

 

Mr. Grant pointed out that Mr. Cleary is requesting a 4’ side yard 

variance, and asked if he could discuss that. 

 

Mr. Cleary noted that he is the owner on that, and if that is not 

approved he will change his deed. He stated that he owns fourteen 

acres to the left that’s where the four feet would come from. He 

also stated that Planning and Zoning placed conditions on the 

permit that was issued. They wanted more specifications on it which 

he did and zoning wanted a report on the noise level which he 

gave them. 

 

Mr. Barnes directed a question to Chairman Grant, and asked if Mr. 

Cleary is looking for four variances. He said he is looking for 3 

setbacks and one for the height and the commission agreed. 

 

Mr. Barnes inquired if there has been an evaluation done on how 

this would affect the properties in that area, at which time Mr. 

Cleary said no.  

     



Zoning Board of Appeals 
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, September 12, 2012 

Wolcott Town Hall, Council Chambers 

7:00 P.M. 

Page 5 of 9    

MINUTES 

__________________________________________________________________ 

  

 

Mr. Muccino said the hardship that Mr. Cleary is claiming is the 

topography, at which time Mr. Cleary said the topography and 

vegetation. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FROM THE PUBLIC: 

 

Richard Roberts, Attorney with Halloran & Sage LLP, One Goodwin 

Square, Hartford, CT was present and came forward on behalf of  

the abutting property owner Beach Road LLC., at 50 Beach Road, 

at which time he read his testimony into the record (see attached). 

 

Denise Olsen, 104 Mad River Road, Wolcott, explained that she is to 

the right of Mr. Cleary’s property.    She indicated that Mr. Cleary 

went to Planning and Zoning a few months ago and he gave what 

he had. Mr. Cleary said this would be the best spot for him to get 

30% on the electricity. She stated that she has property behind 

there which is behind the river. She noted that she has two 

daughters and she would like to develop that in future for her 

daughters. So if she places a house back there this will be an eye 

sore for her daughters and if she didn’t and they wanted to sell, it 

would affect that.   She also noted that it is a financial gain and a 

financial gain is not a hardship. Also, the towers that were approved 

are for the safety of all of us and the Wolcott residents. She also 

stated that she hopes that the commission will not ok this variance.  

 

Thomas Owens, 2668 Albany Ave, West Hartford, CT, was present 

and came forward representing Wolcott View Manor Nursing Home 

and Beach Builders.  Also, he stated that he is one of the Board of 

Directors of Wolcott View. Also, he mentioned that he is a general 

manager of LLC that owns 80% Beach Building property. He      

mentioned that they are strongly opposed to it. He noted that the 

attorney did a great job. He also noted that they are in the process 

of attempting to put in an Assisted Living Facility as part of their 

property on Beach Road, and it is going to be very close to where 

this tower is being proposed. He said if they are granted this facility 

there will be elderly people walking around and they will have 

gardens and they do not want a windmill falling onto their property. 



Zoning Board of Appeals 
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, September 12, 2012 

Wolcott Town Hall, Council Chambers 

7:00 P.M. 

Page 6 of 9    

MINUTES 

__________________________________________________________________ 

  

He indicated that they are opposed. He thinks it could be a safety 

problem. 

 

Chairman Grant inquired if they have any applications pending or 

are they in the process of discussion, at which time Mr. Owens said 

they had applications in for months with the Planning and Zoning 

Dept. and Mr. Cleary has opposed them every step of the way. He 

also noted that they are on the agenda for October. 

 

Mr. Barnes noted that their obligation is to serve on this Board with 

every application they have to look at whether it has exceptional 

difficulty with it, unusual hardship, is it the minimum necessary 

variances require for them to grant it.  Due to consideration of the 

harmony purpose of the regulations for health, safety and welfare 

and property values as discussed.  It’s not a result of the applicants 

action and it is not nearly financial as he looks through our list of our 

obligations that he thinks that fits here as Attorney Roberts brought 

up that is what this is about and then I struggle with the property 

value, safety and welfare because he said that is why I asked if 

there was testimony from a planner because that might affect 

property values. He also mentioned that Mr. Cleary is looking for 4 

variances here and I don’t consider them small variances so are we 

really approving the mimnum necessary and it doesn’t seem that’s 

the case either.   

 

Chairman Grant asked if any other members or alternates had 

comments. 

 

Mr. Cleary stated that he would like to withdraw his application. 

 

Chairman Grant said that could be done. He also asked him to 

write something up at which time he did and handed it in (on File).    

 

CLOSE/CONT. PUBLIC HEARING:  

 

Chairman Grant closed the Public Hearing on Appeal #1960 - at 

7:50 p.m. 

 



Zoning Board of Appeals 
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, September 12, 2012 

Wolcott Town Hall, Council Chambers 

7:00 P.M. 

Page 7 of 9    

MINUTES 

__________________________________________________________________ 

  

 

REGULAR MEETING:  

 

Chairman Grant called the regular meeting to order.  

 

MOTION TO SEAT ALTERNATE MEMBERS: 

 

All five of the regular members were present; alternate members 

were not seated. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 

• Public Hearing and Special Meeting – November 3, 2011 

 

Upon MOTION by Paul Mazurek, seconded by Frances Mae Flynn, it 

was unanimously voted, to approve the minutes of the Public 

Hearing and Special Meeting of November 3, 2011. 

 

Chairman Grant indicated the next item on the Agenda is 

Correspondence. 

 

CORRESPONDENCE: 

 

There were none. 

 

OLD BUSINESS: 

 

There were none. 

 

NEW APPLICATIONS:  

 

• DISCUSSION & POSSIBLE ACTION ON APPEAL #1960 

Appellant/Owner: Dennis Cleary & Eileen Cleary: 108 Mad 

River Road, Wolcott, CT Property Location: same: MAP 

107/LOT 2. Requesting a variance to construct a wind 

energy system with 120’ Monopole, 143’ total unit height 

with 80’ setbacks. 
 



Zoning Board of Appeals 
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, September 12, 2012 

Wolcott Town Hall, Council Chambers 

7:00 P.M. 

Page 8 of 9    

MINUTES 

__________________________________________________________________ 

  

Chairman Grant stated that this is the public hearing that was 

concluded. He indicated that he will open this up to the board 

members. 

 

Ms. Flynn stated that she walked the site and looked at the plan 

and spoke with Mr. Cleary.  She said she understands what he is 

saying but she is having trouble reconciling that to the fact that Mr. 

Cleary already has a permit. She mentioned the tower falling but it 

is slim but there is a possibly.  And with the current permit in place 

the liability is solely on the property of the appellant and no one 

else’s property and cannot reconcile that to a legitimate hardship. 

She noted that the trees can be cut down, vegetation can be 

removed.  Also, there is already a permit in place.  

 

Mr. Mazurek said he applauded Mr. Cleary going green on the 

energy but realistically looking at the variance and for the reason 

that is financially driven. He also noted that Mr. Cleary is looking for 

30% and it is a financial driven argument that’s self at that point and 

he cannot find the argument himself or a state statute to find a 

reason behind it.      

 

Mr. Barnes pointed out what their obligation is serving on this board 

and for every application they need to look at, whether it is 

acceptable difficulty, unusual hardship. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

 

No Executive Session was held.  

 

Chairman Grant indicated the next item on the Agenda is 

Adjournment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Zoning Board of Appeals 
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, September 12, 2012 

Wolcott Town Hall, Council Chambers 

7:00 P.M. 

Page 9 of 9    

MINUTES 

__________________________________________________________________ 

  

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

Upon MOTION made by Frances Mae Flynn, seconded by Paul 

Mazurek, it was unanimously voted to adjourn the meeting at 8:00 

p.m. 

 

APPROVED: 

 

_________________________                  _________________________ 

Dolores Distiso               Steven J.  Grant 

Commission Secretary   Chairman        

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS     ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 


